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Tyrrells Potato Crisps Limited
Annual report and financial statements
30 December 2017

Strategic report

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements of Tyrrells Potato Crisps lelted (the
“Company”), company number 04339626, for the 52 week period ended 30 December 2017.

Principal activities

The company is engaged in the manufacture and distribution of hand-cooked pofato crisps, vegetable crisps, popcorn
and other snacks. There have been no changes in the company’s activities in the 52 week period under review.

There are no plans to change the principal activity of the Company in the foreseeable future.

Business review and future developments
AY

Turnover, net of discounts and promotional costs, is £63m, showing a 1% decline compared to a similar 39 week
period ending 31 December 2016 owing to deflationary consumer markets in the UK. Further details of tumover by
geographical segment are given in note 2 to the financial statements.

The underlying operating profit for the period ending 30 December 2017 (calculated by taking operating -profit/loss
and adding back the one-off item) was £6,089,000 (period ended 31 December 2016: £4,722,000)

Due to the acquisition of the Tyrrells-Group, management undertook an analysis of its inter-company debtors to
determine their recoverability. These debtors are purely intercompany, are unsecured and repayable on demand. As
such there is doubt over their recoverability and it is deemed by management that it is prudent to provide for the
identified intercompany balances at the balance sheet date. There is no cash impact of these actions, and the operating
loss for the period ending 30 December 2017 of £37,064,000 (period ended 31 December 2016: operating profit
of£4,722,000) presented in the financial statements is due to the inclusion of the provision.’

It is worth noting that on consolidation of the Tyrrells Group of companies by its ultimate parent company, these
intercompany balances are eliminated and the net effect on the consolidated balance sheet and profit and loss is nil.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (39 week period ended 31 December 2016: £nil).

Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal risks to the business are viewed as:

. The exposure to fluctuating commodity prlces which the Company mltlgates by usmg dual supply and fixed
contracts;

. Foreign exchange risk which has been substantially reduced during the period, by moving production to the
country of supply; '

o Credit risk, which was controlled during the period via credit insurance and tight credit control procedures;
and

. Unforeseen incidents such vas flood and fire, which would adversely impact on production, and is ‘mitigated -

by having multi-sites, state-of-the-art flood and fire prevention and safety systems, and the operatlon of a
busmess continuity plan throughout the group.
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Strategic report (continued)

Key performance indicators

30 December 2017

"The key performance indicators for the group are turnover, gross profit and earnings before interest, taxation,

depreciation and amortisation (before non-underlying items) (“EBITDA”) and EBITDA%.

52 week

period ended
30 December
2017
£000

Turnover 62,956

Gross profit

EBITDA

EBITDA margin 12.00%

Future developments

18,010

7,527 -

39 week .
period ended
31 December

2016
£000

" 47,741
14,458
5,930

12.4%

On 31 January 2018, Amplify Snack Brands, Inc. the company’s ultimate parent company and all of its subsidiaries
were acquired by The Hershey Company. On 5 July 2018 Thunderball Bidco Limited, the parent company for the
UK group, for which this company is a subsidiary, was acquired by The Intersnack Group GmbH & Co. KG.

Amounts held within short term intercompany creditors at the period end, owed to Amplify Snack Brands, Inc. were
waived on 27" June 2018, prior to the acquisition of the company by The Intersnack Group GmbH & Co. KG.

By order of the board

M Thorpe
Director

M Burns
Director

31 October 2018
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- Directors’ report

The dlrectors present their armual report and the audited financial statements for the 52 weeks ended 30 December
2017.

Financial instruments’

The Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade debtors. Credit risk is managed by running credit
checks on new.customers and by the regular monitoring of accounts against agreed credit terms and limits. The
Company also had credit insurance in place over all of its trade debtors during the period except for those considered -
to be low risk.

The company monitors cash flow as part of its day-to-day control procedures. The management team considers cash
flow projections on a monthly basis and ensures that appropriate facilities are available to be drawn upon as necessary.

Foreign currency sales account for less than 20% of total turnover (39 week period ended 31 December 2016: 20%).
Exchange rates are monitored regularly and any significant change in foreign currency would be adjusted for by the
renegotiation of prices or the exchange risk covered by putting in place a hedging arrangement.

Employees

The Company is committed to equal opportunities for all, free from discrimination and harassment. The Company -
values the contribution of all employees. All job applications and employees, customers and contractors will receive

" equal treatment regardless of sex, race, disability, sexual orientation, religion or belief, age, marital status or
nationality. Wherever possible the Company will assist disabled employees to enable them to work for the Company
and maximise their contribution and performance.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the 52 week period ended 30 December 2017 and in the period up to the report
were as below unless otherwise stated:

J Jones (Resigned 6 February 2017)

D Milner (Resigned 3 May 2017) )

S Telford (Appointed 6 February 2017, Resigned 3 May 2017)
J Bennett. '

M Burns (Appointed 24 July‘2017)

M Thorpe (Appointed 13 August 2018)

Insurance in respect of directors and officers was maintained during the period by its ultimate parent, Amplify Snack
Brands Inc. From 31 January 2018 it was held by its new ultimate parent, The Hershey Company and from 5 July
2018 by its new ultimate parent company, The Intersnack Group GmbH.& Co. KG. The insurance is subject to the
conditions set.out in the Companies Act and remains in force at the date of 51gmng the Directors’ report.

<

Strateglc report

The following information required in the Dlrectors report has been included in the Strategic report:

. Results of the business
. Dividends during the period i
. Principal risks and uncertainties
. Future development
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Directors’ report (continued)

Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis as they have a reasonable expectation
that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future despite incurring a loss

. after tax in the period of £35,600,000. The Intersnack Group GmbH & Co. KG, the ultimate parent company at the
date of 51gmng these financial statements, has confirmed its intention to provide financial support, if required, to
enable the Company to continue in operational existence for.the foreseeable future by meeting its hab:lmes as they
fall due.

Based on the above, the directors believe that it remains appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

Events after the reporting period

'On 31 January 2018, Amplify Snack Brands, Inc. the company’s ultimate parent company and all of its subsidiaries
were acquired by The Hershey Company. On 5 July 2018 Thunderball Bidco Limited, the parent company for the.
UK group, for which this company is a subsidiary, was acquired by The Intersnack Group GmbH & Co. KG.

Appointment of auditor ‘ '
A resolution to appomt an auditor for the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Disclosure of information to auditor

Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

o so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor is unaware;
and

o the director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself/herself
;aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance w1th the provnsxons of s418 of the Companies Act
2006.

By order of the board

M Burns ' M Thorpe Tyrrells Court

Director _ Director Stretford Bridge
' Leominster
Hereford

HR6 9DQ
31 October 2018 '
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Directors’ respdnsibilities statement

The directors are .responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with -
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law), including FRS 101 “Reduced
Disclosure Framework”. Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the
Company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to: ‘

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
. K] < .
. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures

disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business. ' :

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities. '
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Independent auditor’s report to the membeér of Tyrrells Potato Crisps Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements
~ Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements of Tyrrells Potato Crisps Limited (the ‘Company’):

e give atrue and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 December 2017 and of its loss for the
52 week period then ended;
. have been properly prepared in accordance with United ngdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
’ including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework™; and
. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

" We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

the profit and loss account;

the balance sheet;

the statement of changes in equity; and
the related notes 1 to 24.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United
" Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). '

Basis for'opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs(UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the audltor ] respon51b111t1es for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
- responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are required by ISAs (UK) to repoft in respect of the following matters where:

e the directors’ use of the gomg concern basis of accountmg in preparation of the financial statements is not
' " appropriate; or :
. the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast

significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a
period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
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E Independent auditor’s report to the member of
Tyrrells Potato Crisps Limited (continued)

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial

. statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherw1se explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the fmancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
- doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. . .

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matenal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operatlons or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the ﬁnanc1al statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s
report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Company’s member, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s member those matters we are
required to state to it in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other-than the Company and the Company’s member for our audit work,
for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
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Independent auditor’s report to the member of
Tyrrells Potato Crisps Limited (continued)

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

" Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

" In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial period for which the
financial statemerits are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

. the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal

requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or
. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
' certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
. we have not received all the information.and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
Detoicee LLP

Delyth Jones, Senior Statutory Auditor
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor '

- Cardiff, United Kingdom

31% October 2018
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Profit and loss account
Jor the 52 week period ended 30 December 2017
52 week 39 week
period ended period ended
30 December 31 December
Note 2017 2016
] £000 . £000 .
Turnover 2 62,956 47,741
Cost of sales 3 (44,946) (33,283)
Gross profit 18,010 14,458
Net operating costs 3,45 (55,074) (9,736)
Operating profit before one-off items 6,089 . 4,722
Provision against doubtful recovery of inter-company receivables 5 (43,153) -
Operating (loss)/profit - (37,064) 4,722
Interest receivable 6 1,900 2,305
Interest payable and similar charges - 7 - (401) (200)
Net financing income s . 1,499 2,105
(Loss)/profit before tax (35,565) 6,827
Taxation 8 (35 476
(Loss)/profit for the period (35,600) 7,303

All amounts relate to continuing activities,

There were no recogmsed gains or losses in either the current or the preceding perlod other than those disclosed in the
profit and loss account. Accordingly, no statement of other comprehensive income is presented.

The notes on pages 14 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Balance sheet
at 30 December 2017

Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Intangible assets
Investments

Current assets

Stocks

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: Amounts falling due within
one year '

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

~ Creditors: Amounts falling due after
more than one year

Provisions for liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Profit and loss account

Shareholder’s funds '

The notes on pages 14 to 28 form an integral paﬁ of these financial statements.

Note

10
11

12

13

14

15

18

19

- Tyrrells Potato Crisbs Limited

Annual report and financial statements

30 December 2017
£°000 £°000
7,926
. 345
50
8,321
2,645
51,076
1,273
© 54,994
(35,650)-
19,344
- 27,665
(7,958)
(194)
(8,152)
19,513
2
19,511
19,513

30 December 2017

31 December 2016

£000 - £000
8,728
453
50
9231
2,819
84,156
2,127
89,102
(35,661)
53,441
62,672
(7,444)
(115)
(7,559)
55,113
2
55,111
55,113

These ﬁnanc1al statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on 3 1 October 2018

and were signed on its behalf by:

M Burns
Director

Registered number: 04339626

M Thorpe
Director -

12
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Statement of changés in equify

at 30 December 2017
Called Profit
up share and loss . Total
capital account equity
£000 £000 ~£°000
Balance at 1 Aprit2016 - 2 47808  47810°
Profit and total comprehensive income for the period ) - ' 7,303 - 7,303
Balance at 31 December 2016 , . 2 ' 55,111 . 55,113 |
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year ’ - A (35,600) - (35,600)

Balance at 30 December 2017 . 2 19,511 19,513

The notes on pages 14 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.

13
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Notes

(forming part of the financial statements)
1 Accounting policies

Tyrrells Potato Crlsps Limited (the “Company”) is a company limited by shares incorporated and domlclled in the
UK. :

The comparative period is for 39 weeks ended 31 December 2016. All profit and loss notes are for that period.

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
pounds except where otherwise stated.

The Company is exempt by virtue of s401 of the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare group financial
statements. These financial statements present information about the Company as an individual undertaking and not
about its group.

The Company’s ultimate parent undertaking during the period, Amplify Snack Brands Inc., includes the Company in
its consolidated financial statements. Consolidated financial statements have not been prepared by the Company as .
permitted by section 401 of the Companies Act 2006. Consolidated financial statements for Amplify Snack Brands
Inc. and its subsidiary undertakings are appended to these financial statements.

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework (“FRS 101”) and in accordance with applicable accounting standards.

In preparing these financial statements, the Company applies the recognition, measurement and disclosure
requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (“Adopted IFRSs”), but makes
amendments where necessary in order to comply with the Companies Act 2006 and has set out below where advantage
of the FRS 101 disclosure exemptions has been taken. '

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has takeh advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under that
standard in relation to financial instruments, capital management, presentation of comparative information in respect
of certain assets, presentation of a cash flow statement, standards not yet effective, impairment of assets and related
" party transactions.

The Company proposes to continue to adopt the reduced disclosure framework of FRS 101 in its next financial
statements.

1.1 Measurement convention

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the c0n51derat10n given in exchange for goods and services.

1.2 Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis as they have a reasonable expectation
that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future despite incurring-a loss
after tax in the period of £35,600,000. The Intersnack Group GmbH & Co. KG, the ultimate parent company at the
date of signing these financial statements, has confirmed its intention to provide financial support, if required, to
ehable the. Company to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future by meeting its liabilities as they
fall due. :

Based on the above, the directors believe that it remains approprlate to prepare the financial statements on a gomg
concern basis.

1.3 Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the Company’s functional currencies at the foreign exchange rate
ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance
sheet date are retranslated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Non-monetary.
assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange dlfferences arising on translation are recognised in the profit and
loss account.
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Notes

(forming part of the financial statements)
1 . Accounting policies (continued)

1.4 Classification of financial instruments issued by the Company

Following the adoption of IAS 32, financial instruments issued by the Company are treated as equity only to the extent
that they meet the following two conditions: .

. (a) they include no contractual obligations upon the Company to deliver cash or other financial assets or to
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another party under:conditions that are potentially -
unfavourable to the company; and

(b) where the instrument will or may be settled in the Company’s own equity instruments, it is either a non-

: derivative that includes no obligation to deliver a variable number of the Company’s own equity instruments
or is a derivative that will be settled by the Company exchanging a fixed amount of cash or other financial
assets for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

To the extent that this definition is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability. Where the
instrument so classified takes the legal form of the Company’s own shares, the amounts presented in these financial
statements for called up share capital and share premium account exclude amounts in relation to those shares.

L.5 - Financial assets and liabilities . '

Financial assets :
The Company’s financial assets include cash-and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other receivables, loans and
other investments. The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. Financial
assets are recognised initially at fair value, normally being the transaction price plus, in the case of financial assets not-
at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Trade and other debtors are
recognised and carried at the lower of their original invoiced amount and recoverable amount. Provision for
impairment is made through the profit and loss account where there is objective evidence that the Company will not
be able to recover balances in full. Balances are written off whgn the probability of recovery is assessed as being
remote. ‘

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term hlghly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash, are subject to mmgmﬁcant risk of changes in value and have a maturity of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

Financial liabilities
The Company’s financial liabilities mclude trade and other payables, accruals and interest-bearing loans and
borrowings. The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows:

‘All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value. For interest-bearing loans and borrowings this is the fair
value of the proceeds received net of directly attributable issue costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any issue costs and any discount or premium on
settlement. ‘Gains and losses arising in the repurchase, settlement or cancellation of liabilities are recognised
respectively in interest and other income and finance costs.

15
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Notes -

(forming part of the fi nanc:al statements)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

1.6 Tangible fixed assets
. Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Where parts of an item of tangible fixed assets have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of
tangible fixed assets.

Leases in which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset are
classified as finance leases. Where land and buildings are held under leases the accounting treatment of the land is
considered separately from that of the buildings. Leased assets acquired by way of finance lease are stated at an
-amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the
lease, less accumulated depreciation and less accumulated impairment losses. Lease payments are accounted for as
described below.

Depreciation is charged to the proﬁ‘t and loss account over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of tangible
fixed assets. Land is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives of assets were.changed from 3 September 2016 to
those set out below: :

J leasehold property : Over the remaining period of the lease
. plant and machinery : Straight-line 5 to 15 years

. * fixtures and fittings (inc computer equipment) Straight-line 3 to 7 years

. motor vehicles Straight-line 5 years

Depreciation methods,-useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
17 Intangible assets, goodwill and negative goodwill

Research and development
Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the profit and loss account as an expense as incurred.

Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if the product or process is technically and commercially feasible
and the Company intends and has the technical ability and sufficient resources to complete development, future
economic benefits are probable and if the Company can measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible -
- asset during its development. Development activities involve a plan or design for the production of new or
substantially improved products or processes. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads and capitalised borrowing costs. Other development expenditure is
recognised in the profit and loss account as an expense as incurred. Capitalised development expenditure is stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and less accumulated impairment losses.

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and less
accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation :

Amortisation is charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets unless such lives are indefinite. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and goodwill are
“systematically tested for impairment at each balance sheet date. Other intangible assets are amortised from the date
they are available for use. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

. trademarks 10 years
. computer software 3 to 7 years

The estimated useful economic lives of computer software were changed from 3 September 2016 to those set out -
above.

1.8 Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is based on the first-in first-out principle and
includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the stocks, production or conversion costs and other costs in bringing them
to their existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured stocks and work in progress, cost mcludes an
appropriate share of overheads based on normal operating capacity.

16
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Notes

(forming part of the financial stdtements)
1 Accounting policies (continued)

19 Impairment excluding stocks and deferred tax assets

Financial assets (including trade and other debtors)

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss
event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated
future cash ﬂows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortlsed cost is calculated as the difference between
its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
interest rate. For financial instruments measured at cost less impairment an impairment is calculated as the difference
between its carrying amount and the best estimate of the amount that the Company would receive for the asset if it
were to be sold at the reporting date. Interest on the impaired asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding
of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

Non-financial assets '

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than stocks and deferred tax assets, are reviewed
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

" An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units, and then to reduce the carrying
amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a chiange
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the.
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

1.10  Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for
contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account in the
periods during which services are rendered by employees.

Short-term benefits :

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service
is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing
plans if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Long-term benefits

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured at fair value using an appropriate option pricing model. Fair value
is established at each balance sheet date from grant date until the awards are settled. During the vesting period a
liability is recognised, representing the product of the fair value of the award and the portion of the vesting period
expired as at the balance sheet date. From the end of the vesting period until settlement, the liability represents the
full fair value of the awards as at the balance sheet date. Changes in the carrying amount of the liability are recognised
in profit or loss for the year. '
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Notes

(forming part of the financial statements)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

-

1.11 Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event, that can be reliably measured and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax
rate that reflects risks specific to the liability.

1.12 Turnover and trade debtors

Turnover represents sales to external customers at invoiced amounts, net of discounts and promotional costs, less
value added tax. .

Turnover is recognised when the customer has either collected or receipted goods and the risks and rewards of
ownership have transferred to the customer. Product is sold to customers on credit terms established on a customer-
by-customer basis, The credit factors used include historical performance, current economic conditions and the nature
and volume of the product.

Unsecured credit is extended to customers in the ordinary course of business and efforts are made to mitigate the
associated credit risk by performing credit checks and actively pursuing past due accounts. Accounts are charged to
bad debt expense as they are deemed uncollectable based upon a period review of ageing and collections.

1.13 Expenses

Operating lease payments

Payments (excluding costs for services and insurance) made under operating leases are recogmsed in the profit and
loss account on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the profit
and loss account as an integral part of the total lease expense. :

Finance lease payments

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstandmg liability.
The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. , '

Interest receivable and interest payable

Interest payable and similar charges include interest payable, finance charges on finance leases recognised in profit or
loss using the effective interest method, unwinding of the discount on provisions, and net foreign exchange losses that
are recognised in the profit and loss account (see foreign currency accounting policy). Borrowing costs that are
dlrectly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that takes a substantial time to be prepared
for use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other interest receivable and similar income include interest
receivable on funds invested and net foreign exchange gains.

Interest income and interest payable is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognised in the profit and loss account on the date the entity’s right to receive payments is
established. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

1.14  Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the proﬁf and loss
account except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive mcome in
which case it isrecognised directly in equity or other comprehenswe income.

~ Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable profit or loss for the period, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided on-temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
" substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised. .
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Notes

(forming part of the financial statements)

1 - Accounting policies (continued)

LiS : Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements requires the directors to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be .
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Revenue recognition
Our customers are offered a variety of sales and incentives programmes, including price discounts, slotting fees, in-
store displays and trade advertising. The costs of these programmes are recognised at the time the related sales are
recorded and are classified as a reduction in turnover. These programme costs are recorded based on estimated
- participation and performance levels of the offered programmes, with regard to factors such as historical trends with
similar promotions, expectations regarding customer and consumer participation and sales and payment trends with
similar previously offered programmes. We estimate trade programme costs incurred but unpaid, which is recorded
as a reduction in the revenue and trade accounts receivable balance. Evaluating these estimates requires management
judgement and, as such, actual results may differ from our estimates. Historically, differences-between estimated and
actual trade programme costs are generally not material and are recognised as a change in turnover in the period such
differences are determined. ’ .

2 Turnover .
52 week 39 week
period ended  period ended
30 December 31 December
2017 2016
: £000 £°000
Analysis by geographical market
United Kingdom 49,761 38,780
Europe 10,918 6,921 .
Rest of the world 2,277 2,040
62,956 47,741
All revenue relates to the sale of potato crisps, vegetable crisps, popcorn and other snacks.
3 Expenses and auditor’s remuneration
- 52 week . 39 week
period ended  period ended
- . . 30 December 31 December
2017 2016
£000 £000
Included in profit/(loss) are the following :
Amortisation of intangible assets 110 75
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 1,329 1,133
Operating leases: .
Hire of plant and machinery 78 54
Hire of other assets . . ) 150 65
Profit on disposal of fixed assets ' €)) -
Staff costs (see note 4) ' 9,658 7,408
Stock costs ’ 4 30,981 23,062
Provision for doubtful recovery of intercompany receivables 43,153 -
Auditor’s remuneration .
65

Audit of these financial statements . 65
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4 Staff numbers and costs

The average number of persons employed by the company (including directors) during the periods was as follows:

52 week 39 week
period ended  period ended
30 December 31 December
_ 2017 2016
Production 138 131
Warehouse and distribution 27 28
Sales and marketing 40 38
Office and administration 24 20
229 217
The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows: £000 £°000
Wagés and salaries 8,706 6,700
Social security costs 910 681
Contributions to defined contribution plans 42 27
9,658 . 7,408
5 - Directors’ remuneration

52 week 39 week
period ended  period ended
30 December 31 December
2017 2016
. £000 £000

Directors’ remuneration . 1,052 956 -
Company contributions to money purchase pension plans 1 1

Number of employees

The aggregate of remuneration of the highest paid director was £427,500 (39 week period ended 31 December 2016:

£716,274).
Number of directors
52 week 39 week
period ended  period ended
30 December 31 December -
2017 2016
Retirement benefits are accruing to the following number of directors under:
Money purchase schemes 2 2
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Notes (continued)

6 Interest receivable

Net foreign exchange gain
Loan interest

7 Interest payable and similar charges

Bank loans and overdrafts
Finance leases and hire purchase contracts
Inter-company loan interest ’

8 Taxation

Recognised in the profit and loss account

UK corporation tax .
Current tax on (losses)/profits for the period
Adjustment in respect of previous periods

Total current tax

Deferred tax (see note 18)

Origination and reversal of timing differences
Reduction in tax rate

Adjustment in respect of previous periods

Total deferred tax

Tax on (loss)/profit on ordinary activities 4

Tyrrells Potato Crisps Limited

*  Annual report and financial statements

N

52 week period ended

£000

(4‘;)

(61)
140

30 December
2017
£000

(44)

79

35

30 December 2017

52 week '39 week
period ended  period ended -
30 December 31 December

2017 2016

£000 £2000

‘ 317 1,683
1,583 622

1,900 2,305
—_— —_— e

52 week 39 week

period ended  period ended
30 December 31 December

2017 2016
£2000 £2000
28 24

i 4

373 172

401 200

39 week period ended
31 December

, 2016
£000 £2000
(123)
- a23)
(337)
(26)
10
(353)
. @76)
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A Notes'(continuéd) ‘

8 Taxation (continued)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate -

(Loss)/profit for the period
Total tax charge/(credit)

(Loss)/profit before tax

Tax using the UK corporatlon tax rate of 19 25% (39 week perzod ended

31 December 2016: 20%, %)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Depreciation on ineligible expenditure

Group relief for free .

Reduction in tax rate on deferred tax balances
Adjustments in respect of previous periods

Total tax charge/(credit)

" Factors that may affect future charges

Tyrrells Potato Crisps Limited
Annual report and financial statements
30 December 2017 -

52 week - 39 week
period ended  period ended
30 December 31 December

2017 2016
£2000 £2000
(35,600) 7,303
S35 (476)
.. (35,565) 6,827
£000 £2000
(6,846) 1,365
8,352 248
35 32
10 26
96 (113)

35 . (476)

The standard blended rate of tax applied to reported proﬁt on ordinary activities is 19.25 per cent (2016 20 per cent).
Deferred taxes are valued at 17%, based on the future tax rates introduced in the Finance Act 2016 (2016: 17%, based
on the future tax rates introduced in'the Finance Act 2016). There isno explry date on timing differences, unused tax

losses or credits.
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. Notes (continued)
9 - Tangible fixed assets
Leasehold
land and Plant and Motor Fixtures
buildings machinery vehicles and fittings ‘ Total
£000 £000 £000 . £°000 £000
Cost or valuation . : .
At 1 January 2017 ' 3,927 11,846 257 1,265 17,295
Additions 16 ' 399 - 163 578
Disposals - (103) (185) (}38) ' (426)
At 30 December 2017 3,943 12,142 72 1290 17,447
Depreciation
At 1 January 2017 2,175 5,683 171 538 8,567
Provided for the year 220 845 - 24 240 1,329
On disposals - (103) (135) . (137) (375)
At 30 December 2017 2,395 ’ 6,425 60 641 9,521
Net book value , i
At 30 December 2017 1,548 5,717 12 649 3 7,926
‘At 31 December 2016 1,752 6,163 - 86 o 727 8,728
10 -Intangible fixed assets
Computer : :
software Trademarks Total
£000 £000 £000
Cost : . ,
At 1 January 2017 630 50 680
Additions ) : 2 - 2
At 30 December 2017 4 632 50 682
Amortisation and impairment : , :
At 1 January 2017 : 218 9 - 227
Amortisation for the year 105 S 110
At 30 December 2017 323 14 - 337
Net book value ' : .
At 30 December 2017 . 309 36 345
At 31 December 2016 412 41 . 453
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!
10 Intangible fixed assets (continued)

Amortisation charge
The amortisation charge is recognised in the following line items in the profit and loss account:

52 week - 39 week
period.ended period ended
30 December 31 December

2017 2016
£000 £000
Administrative exper;sés ‘ 4 ' - 110 : 75
11 Fi;(ed asset investments
Shares in
group
undertakings
£000
. Cost at beginning and end of the period . ‘ | 50
The Company has the following investments in subsidiaries:
. A Ownership .
Country of Class of shares 30 December 31 December
incorporation held v 2017 2016
Tyrrells Group Holdings (Germany) -
GmbH* -+ * Germany °  Ordinary 100% 100%
Aroma Snacks GmbH & Co KG+ Germany Ordinary 100% 100%
Aroma Verwaltungs GmbH+ Germany Ordinary 100% 100%

* Subsidiaries directly owned by the Company are marked with an asterix. All other companies are indirectly owned.

+ The principal activity of these companies is the manufacture and distribution of potato crisps, vegetable crisps,
popcorn and other snacks.

++ The principal activity of this company is that of an investment halding company.

The registered address for the German businesses is Geiselharz 23, DE-88279, Amtzell, Germany.

12 Stocks
30 December 31 December
2017 2016
£°000 £000
Raw materials and consumables ' ' 1,323 1,113
Finished goods and goods for resale ’ o ‘ 1,322 1,706

2,645 2,819

Raw materials, consumables and changes in ﬁnished g_oods and work in progress recognised as cost of sales in the
52 week period amounted to £30,981,000 (39 week period ended 31 December 2016: £23,062,000).
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13 Debtors .
30 December 31 December -

2017 2016
£000 £000
Trade debtors : : ’ 14,180 16,795
Amounts owed by group undertakings within one year ' . 44,190 36,237
Provision for doubtful recovery of inter-company receivables - (43,153) ' -
Corporation tax debtor . ' 263 -
Other debtors and prepayments , 866 - 883
Amounts owed by group undertakings greater than one year ‘ . 34,730 30,241

51,076 84,156

Amounts owed by group undertakings include an inter-company loan accruing interest at 3%, held with Tyrrells Group
Holdings (Germany) GmbH, due to be repaid on 23 March 2065. At the period-end the principal amount is
€12,975,000 (€11,515,313) and the total amount recelvable including accrued interest is £12 143,336 (31 December
2016: £11,356,686).

Amounts owed by group undertakings include an inter-company loan accruing interest at 3%, held with Tyrrells Group
Holdings (Germany) GmbH. At the period-end the principal amount is €4,421,000 (£3,923,639) and the total amount
receivable including accrued interest is £4,098,685 (31 December 2016: £3, 834, 151).

Amounts owed by group undertakings include an inter-company loan accruing interest at 3%, held with: Aroma
Verwaltungs (Germany) GmbH. At the period-end the principal amount is €315, 000 (£279,563) and the total amount
recewable including accrued interest is £288,636 (31 December 2016: £270,037). .

Amounts owed by group undertakings include an inter-company loan accruing interest at 3%, held with Aroma Snacks
GmbH & Co KG (Germany). At the period-end the principal amount is €4,595,178 (£4,078,078) and the total amount
receivable including accrued interest is £4,199,377 (31 December 2016: £2,248,010).

Amounts owed by group hndertakings include an inter-company loan accruing interest at‘6%, held with Tyrrells Crisps
Holdings (Australia) Pty Limited At the period-end the principal amount is AUD$5,725,010 (£3,303,903) and the-
‘total amount receivable including accrued interest is £3,576,065 (31 December 2016: £3,421,554).

Amounts owed by group undertakings include an inter-company loan accruing interest at 6%, held with Yarra Valley
Snack Foods Pty Limited (Australia). At the period-end the principal amount is AUD$16,448,954 (£9,492,702) and
the total amount receivable including accrued interest is £10,423,499 (3/ December 2016: £9,110,954).

A provision against the recoverability of part of the inter-company debtors. has been made in these financial statements.

14 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

. . 30 December 31 December

) : 2017 2016

£000 - £000

Trade creditors 6,763 8,232
Corporation tax ‘ - . 8

" Other taxation and social security : o 605 667
Accruals and deferred income ‘ ‘ 4,357 6,821
Amounts owed to group undertakings ‘ ' 23,925 19,933

35,650 35,661

Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-free.
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15 Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
' 30 December 31 December
2017 2016
£°000 £000 -
Amounts owed to group undertakings (see note 16) A 7,958 7,444
16 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Company’s interest-bearing loans and borrowings, .
which are measured at amortised cost.

30 December 31 December

2017 2016

: £000 . £2000
Creditors falling due after more than one year :

Amounts owed to group undertakings ’ ' ' 7,958 7,444

Amounts owed to group undertakings include an inter-company loan accruing interest at 3%, held with Crisps Bidco
Limited, due to be repaid on 23 March 2065. At the period-end the principal amount is €8,500,000 (£7,543,750) and
the total amount payable including accrued interest is £7,958,000 (37 December 2016: £7,444,000).

Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured and repayable on demand.

17 Pensions

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charge for the 52 week period ended
30 December 2017 represents contributions payable by the Company to the scheme and amounted to £42,186 (39 week
period ended 31 December 2016: £27,174). Contributions amounting to £7,606 (39 week period ended 31 December
2016: £6,413) were payable to the scheme and are included in creditors. '

18 ° Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

) o, Assets _ . Liabilities _ Net
30 December 31 December 30 December 31 December 30 December 31 December
2017 2016 2017 : 2016 2017 2016
, £°000 £°000 £°000 £000 - £000 £°000
" Tangible fixed assets o , 195 268 195 - 268
Other , o a . (153) . - - )] (153)
Net tax assets . 0 (153) 195 268 194 . 115
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19 Share capital and reserves

30 December 31 December
2017 - . 2016
‘ £000 £000
Allotted, called up and fully paid .
1,875 ordinary shares of £1 each 2 . 2

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one
vote per share at meetings of the Company.

The profit and-loss account represents all net gains and losses and transactions with owners that are not recognised
elsewhere. ’ 4

20 Commitments under operating leases
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows: _ Other Other
30 December 31 December
2017 2016
£000 ) £000
Less than one year ‘ ‘ V : ' 226 : 229
Between one and five years : - 651 736
After more than five years ' 268 408
1,145 1,373

During the 52 week period ended 30 December 2017 £228,000 was recognised as an expense in the profit and loss
account in respect of operating leases (39 week period ended 31 December 2016: £119,000).

21 Capital commitments

_ At the period-end the Company had capital commitments amounting to £224,653(39 week pertod ended 31 December
2016: £nil) for new machinery.

22 Related party disclosures )
" The Company has apphed the exemptions.available under paragraph 8(k) of FRS 101 not to disclose transactlons with
fellow wholly-owned subsidiaries.

23 Ultimate parent company

The immediate parent undertaking of the Company during the period was Tyrrells Group Limited, mcorporated in the
UK. The ultimate parent and controlling party during the period was Amplify Snack Brands Inc., reglstered in the
United States. The smallest and largest group in which the results of the Company are consolldated is headed by
Amplify Snack Brands Inc. A copy of the consolidated financial statements of Amplify Snack Brands, Inc. for the
year ended 30 December 2017 is appended to these ﬁnanc1a1 statements.

The ultimate controlling party at the date of signing these financial statements’ is The Intersnack Group GmbH & Co.
KG, registered in Germany. - ¢
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24 Post balance sheet event
On 31 January 2018, Amplify Snack Brands, Inc. the company’s ultimate parent company Vand all of its subsidiaries

were acquired by The Hershey Company. On 5 July 2018 Thunderball Bidco Limited, the parent company for the
UK group, for which this company is a subsidiary, was acquired by The Intersnack Group GmbH & Co. KG.
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' INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
Management of Amplify Snack Brands, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Amplify
Snack Brands, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the "Company"), which comprise the
balance sheet as of December 30, 2017, and the related statements of
comprehensive income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the 52 weeks
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted -
in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fajr presentation
of financial statements that are free from materlal misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of -
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation.of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also.includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentatlon of the financial
statements. :

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion.



-Basis for Qualified Opinion

The Company has $178.8 million of goodwill and $551.8 million of intangible-
assets 6n the balance sheet at December 30, 2017. As described in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Company was acquired by The Hershey
Company on January 31, 2018. As thée carrying amount of the goodwill and
intangible assets will be revalued as of the acquisition date, management of the
Company requested we not perform audit procedures on goodwill and intangible
assets as of December 30, 2017. Therefore, we were unable to obtain sufficient

" appropriate audit evidence about the carrying amount of the Company’s goodwill
and intangible assets as of December 30, 2017 and consequently, we were
unable to determine whether any adjustments to these amounts were necessary.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the consolidated financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Amplify
Snack Brands, Inc. and its subsidiaries as of December 30, 2017, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for the 52 weeks then ended in -
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. '

/MJMW

April 17, 2018
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‘ Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity
"~ (in thousands, except for share data)

Accumulated
Other
Retained Comprehensive
Common Stock . Treasury Stock Earnings Income (Loss) Total

—
molint: 4

L

" AMOUAT:

Yo Bhres

4> Share's':

{Balance at December31,2016 "+ 76,786,000

Net income (52 weeks)

-7(1,554,1086)"

(123,600)

Foreign currency translation

adjustment . 36,146 36,146

T AT $124,607)

|Batance at Décember 30, 2017,

* Amount rounds to zero.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AMPLIFY SNACK BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES ‘
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. BUSINESS OVERVIEW .

Amplify Snack Brands, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its subsidiaries (collectively, the "Company,” and herein
referred to as "we", "us", and "our") is a high growth, snack food company focused on developing and marketing
products that appeal to consumers’ growing preference for better-for-you ("BFY") snacks. Our brands primarily compete
in the salty snack segment, which includes products such as potato chips, tortilla chips, popcorn, cheese snacks and
pretzels. Our products are comprised of our cornerstone brand, SkinnyPop popcorn products, in addition to Tyrrells
potato and vegetable chips, Paquitortilla chips, Oatmega protein bars, Thomas Chipman potato chips, the Wholesome
Food Company tortilla chips and Lisa’s Chips potato chips. Our products are primarily sold within North America and
Europe. ‘

2. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 31, 2018, all of the outstanding shares and unvested equity awards of the Company were acquired'by the
Hershey Company ("Hershey"). The purchase consideration for the outstanding shares and unvested equity awards
totaled approximately $942.9 million, or $12.00 per share. In connection with acquisition, Hershey paid a total amount
of approximately $607.2 million to pay in full all outstanding debt and accrued interest owed by the Company under
its existing credit agreement as of January 31, 2018. As part of the transaction, the remaining obligation of the tax
receivable agreement became due and payable. The Tax Receivable Agreement ("TRA") liability will be paid by the .
Hershey Company. The Company has evaluated subsequent events through April 17, 2018, which is the date the
financial statements were issued.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP") and include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

‘Use of Estirhates

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with GAAP. Management is required to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of net sales and expenses during the
reporting period. The Company routinely evaluates its estimates, including those related to accruals and allowances
for customer programs and incentives, bad debts, income taxes, long-lived assets, inventories, equity-based
compensation, accrued broker commissions and contingencies. The Company bases its estimates on historical
- experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Significant Risks and Uncertainties

The Company’s future results of operations involve a number of risks and uncertainties. Factors that could affect the
Company’s future operating results and cause actual results to vary materially from expectations include, but are not
limited to, fluctuations in commaodity prices, specifically popcorn kernels, potatoes, fuel and sunflower oil, continued
acceptance of the Company's products, competition from substitute products and larger companies and dependence
on strategic relationships. In North America, the Company relies on contract manufacturers to manufacture and third-
party logistics to distribute its products. The Company's manufacturers and suppliers may encounter supply interruptions
or problems during manufacturing due to a variety of reasons, including failure to comply with applicable regulations,
equipment maifunction and weather and environmental factors, any of WhICh could delay or impede the Company's
ability to meet demand.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

Exchange adjustments resulting' from foreign currency transactions are recognized as a component of other non-
operating income in the accompanying consolidated statement of comprehensive income. For the Company's non-
U.S. dollar functional currency subsidiaries, assets and liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars by using year-end
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exchange rates. Income and expense items are translated at a weighted-average exchange rate prevailing during the
year. Adjustments resulting from translation of financial statements are reflected as a separate component of
shareholders' equity.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the reporting date. The accounting guidance establishes a three-
tiered hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in the valuation methodologies in measuring fair value:

Level 1—Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2—Inpufs other than Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices in markets
that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially
the full term of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market actlwty and that are significant to the fair value
of the assets or liabilities.

N

The categorization of a financial instrument within the valuation hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement.

The carrying amounts of the Company's financial instruments, including cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable -
and accrued liabilities, approximate fair value due to their relatively short maturities. Our term loan and revolving credit
facility bear interest at a variable interest rate plus an applicable margin and, therefore, carrying amount approximates
fair value. The fair value of our term loan and revolving credit facility are estimated based on Level 2 inputs, which
were quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active.

. On a recurring basis we remeasure the fair value of acquisition related contingent consideration. As of December 30,
2017, the fair value of contingent consider was $2,416, which is reported in Other liabilities in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheet. .

Contingent Consideration

In connection with the acquisitions of Boundless Nutrition, LLC ("Oatmega") and Paqui, LLC ("Paqui"), collectively
referred to as the "Predecessor Owners", the payment of a portion of the respective purchase price is contingent upon
the achievement of a defined contribution margin for the year ending December 31, 2018 ("Earn-out Period"). Amounts
in excess of the sum of the original principal amount and accrued interest of each respective seller notes issued to the
Predecessor Owners will be payable to the Predecessor Owners. See Note 9 for further discussion of the seller notes. -

At each reporting period, the Company remeasures the estimated fair value of the contingent consideration. The
significant inputs used in the fair value estimates include numerous gross sales scenarios for the Earn-out Periods for
which probabilities are assigned to each scenario to arrive at a smgle estimated outcome (Level 3). The estimated
outcome is then discounted based on the individual risk analysis of the liability. The present value of the estimated
outcome is used as the underlying price and the sum of the original principal amount and accrued interest of the notes
issued to the Predecessor Owners is used as the exercise price in the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Although
the Company believes its estimates and assumptions are reasonable, different assumptions, including those regarding
the operating results of Paqui and Oatmega, or changes in the future may result in different estimated amounts.

The following table summarizes the Level 3 activity related to the Contingent Consideration (in thousands):

[Balance as of December 31, 2016 , i $ 2,491}
Gain on change in fair value of contlngent conS|derat|on o (75)
{Balance as of December 30, 2017 4 T T $ ' 2,416
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

\ .
Cash and cash equivalents include cash and money market funds with an original maturity of 90 days or less.
Inventories

In our North American operations, inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value using the weighted-
average cost method. The Company generally procures certain raw materials inputs and packaging from suppliers
and contracts with third-party firms to assemble and warehouse finished products. The third-party co-manufacturers
invoice the Company monthly for labor inputs upon the production or shipment of finished product during the period.

In our international operations, inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value using the first-in, first-
out method. The Company owns the manufacturing facilities used for production. The costs of finished goods inventories
include raw materials, direct labor, indirect productlon and overhead costs.

Write-downs are provided for finished goods expected to become non-saleable due to age and provisions are specifically
made for slow moving or obsolete raw ingredients and packaging. We also adjust the carrying value of our inventories
when we believe that the net realizable value is less than the carrying value. These write-downs are measured as the
difference between the cost of the inventory, including estimated costs to complete and estimated selling prices. Charges
related to slow moving or obsolete items are recorded as a component of cost of goods sold. Charges related to
packaging redesigns are recorded as a component of selling and marketing expenses. Once inventory is written down,
a new, lower-cost basis is established. These adjustments are estimates that require management judgment. Actual
results could vary from our estimates and additional inventory write-downs could be required.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation on machinery and equipment
is provided in amounts sufficient to relate the cost of the assets to operations over their estimated useful lives based
on a straight-line method. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Assets not yet placed in
service are not depreciated.

The useful lives of the Corﬁpany‘s property and equipment are as follows:

[Buildings and improvements N -Upto50years ~ * . - i e ]
Machinery and equipment : 5t0 15 years

[Furnitire and fixtares L 3t0 7 years ‘ - |
Leasehold improvements Shorter of lease term or estimated useful life

We continually evaluate whether events and circumstances have occurred that indicate the remaining estimated useful
life of long-lived assets may warrant revision, or that the remaining balance of these assets may not be recoverable.

_When deemed . necessary, we complete.this evaluation.by comparing the carrying-amount of the assets-against the-

estimated undiscounted future cash flows associated with them. |f such evaluations indicate that the future undiscounted
cash flows of amortizable long-lived assets are not sufficient to recover the carrying value of such assets, the assets
are adjusted to their estimated fair values.

Deferred Financing Costs

Costs incurred in connection with debt issuances have been deferred and are amortized using the effective interest
method over the term of the related debt instrument as interest expense.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
impairment may have occurred. We have the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more
likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. Otherwise, the impairment analysis
for goodwill includes a comparison of our carrying value (including goodwill} to our estimated fair value. If the fair value
does not exceed the carrying value, then an impairment charge for the shortage is recorded. If the excess of the fair
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value of our identifiable assets and liabilities is less than the carrying value of recorded goodwill, an impairment charge
is recorded for the difference. The Company performs its required annual assessment of goodwill during the thlrd
quarter of its fiscal year.

Othér intangible assets are comprised of both finite and indefinite-lived intangible assets. Indefinite-lived intangible
assets, including our trade names, are not amortized. The Company has the option to first assess the qualitative factors
to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of an indefinite-lived intangible asset is less than its
carrying amount. Otherwise, indefinite-lived intangible assets are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired.

An intangible asset is determined to have an indefinite useful life when there are no legal, regulatory, contractual,

competitive, economic or any other factors that may limit the period over which the asset is expected to contribute

directly or indirectly to our future cash flows. In each reporting period, we also evaluate the remaining useful life of an

intangible asset that is not being amortized to determine whether events and circumstances continue to support an

indefinite useful life. If an intangible asset that is not being amortized is determined to have a finite useful life, the asset

will be amortized prospectively over the estimated remaining useful life and accounted for in the same manner as
. intangible assets subject to amortization.

The Company generally expenses legal and related costs incurred in defending or protecting its intellectual property
unless it can be established that such costs have added economic value to the business enterprise, in WhICh case it
capitalizes the costs incurred as part of intangible assets.

_Impairment of Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable and prior to any annual impairment test. Recoverability of assets to be
held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future net cash flows expected to
be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment
charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset.
There was no impairment of long-lived assets during the 52 weeks ended December 30, 2017.

Recognition of Net Sales, Sales Incentives and Trade Accounts Receivable

Net sales are recognized when the earnings process is complete, and the risks and rewards of ownership have
transferred to the customer, which occurs upon the receipt and acceptance of product by the customer. The Company’s
customers are primarily businesses that are stocking its products. The earnings process is complete once the customer
. order has been placed and approved and the product shipped has been received by the customer or when product is
picked up by the Company’s customers at the Company's co-manufacturer. Product is sold to customers on credit
terms established on a customer-by-customer basis. The credit factors used lnclude historical performance, current
economic conditions and the nature and volume of the product.

The Company offers Its customers a variety ot sales and incentive programs, including price discounts, coupons,
slotting fees, in-store displays and trade advertising. The costs of these programs are recognized at the time the related
sales are recorded and are classified as a reduction in net sales. These program costs are estimated based on a
number of factors including customer participation and performance levels.

The Company extends unsecured credlt toits customers in the ordinary course of business but-mitigates the associated
credit risk by performing credit checks and actively pursuing past due accounts. Accounts are charged to bad debt
expense as they are deemed uncollectible based upon a periodic review of aging and collections.

As of December 30, 2017, the Company recorded total allowances against trade accounts receivable of $12.9 million.
Recoveries of receivables previously written off are recorded when received.
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Allowance for Allowance for

. doubtful promotional Total
Description - accounts activities Allowance -

Balance as of December 31, 2016 $ — $ 9, 261 $ 9,261
[Charged 19 €osts and expenses 44 74, T i75.157]
Write-offs and adjustments

(71,561)
{Balance as of December:30, 2017 12,8571

"'12,5221‘ $"

Cost.of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold consists of the costs of ingredients and packaging utilized in the manufacture of products, contract
manufacturing fees, production and supply chain personnel, shipping and handling costs to external customers,
_equipment repairs, in-bound freight charges, reserves for inventory obsolescence and depreciation of manufacturlng y
. equment

t

Employee Benefits

The Company has defined contribution plans covering substantially all domestic and international employees who
meetcertain service and eligibility requirements. For the 52 weeks ended December 30, 2017, the Company contributed
$1.2 million towards these plans. : :

Equity-Based Compensation

The Company records equity-based compensation in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s
(“FASB”)Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC") Topic 718, “Compensation—Stock Compensation”, which requires
the measurement and recognition of compensation expense for aII equity-based payment awards made to employees
and directors .including incentive units or employee stock options based on estimated fair values. See Note 12 for a

further discussion of the valuation process.
Al

Concentration Risk

Financial instruments which’ potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash, cash
_equivalents and trade receivables. We maintain the majority of our cash and cash equivalents in the form of demand
deposits with financial institutions that management believes are creditworthy. ’

Customers with 10% or more of the Company's net sales consist of the following:
. AN

Year Ended

Decembcer 30, 2017 = -mmmm—meta———s
- Wl

Customer One o . - 15%

{Customer:-

As of December 30, 2017, two customers represented 14% and 10%, respectively of our consolidated accounts
receivable balance with no other customer representing more than 10% of the balance. The Company outsources a
significant percentage of the manufacturing of its products to a single co-manufacturer in the United States. This co-
manufacturer represented 25% of accounts payable as of December 30, 2017.

Income Taxes

~.

We base our deferred income taxes, accrued income taxes and provisidn for income taxes upon income, statﬁtory tax
rates, the legal structure of our Company, interpretation of tax laws and tax planning opportunities available to us in
‘the various jufisdictions in which we operate. We f le income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various
state and foreign jurisdictions.
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We apply a more-likely-than-not threshold to the recognition and derecognition of uncertain tax positions. Accordingly,
we recognize the amount of tax benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being ultimately realized upon
settlement. Future changes in judgments and estimates related to the expected ultimate resolution of uncertain tax
positions will affect income in the quarter of such change. While it is often difficuit to predict the final outcome or the
timing of resolution of any particular uncertain tax position, we believe that our unrecognized tax benefits reflect the
most likely outcome. Accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are included in income tax
expense. We adjust these unrecognized tax benefits, as well as the related interest, in light of changing facts and
circumstances. Settlement of any particular position could require the use of cash. Favorable resolution would be
recognized as a reduction to our effective income tax rate in the period of resolution. We believe it is more likely than
not that the results of future operations will generate sufficient taxable income to realize the deferred tax assets, net
of valuation allowances. Our valuation allowances are primarily}elated to U.K. interest expense limitation carryforwards
and various foreign jurisdictions' net operating loss carryforwards for which we do not expect to realize a benefit.

TRA

Immediately prior to the consummation of the IPO in August 2015, the Company entered into a TRAwith the predecessor
unit holders. In December 2015, all of the former holders of the units collectively assigned their interests to a new
counterparty. The Company estimates its obligation based on the full and undiscounted amount of expected future
payments under the TRA in consideration of a reduction in the Company's. future U.S. federal, state and local taxes
resulting from the utilization of certain tax attributes. The Company accounted for the obligation under the TRA as a
dividend and elected to reduce additional paid in capital. Subsequent adjustments of the TRA obligation due to certain
events, such as potential changes in tax rates or insufficient taxable income, will be recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. During the 52 weeks ended December 30, 2017, the Company recognized a
gain of $24.6 million due to a reduction of the enacted U.S. federal income tax rate which is recorded within other
income on our consolidated statement of comprehensive income. As part of the Hershey acquisition discussed in Note
2 of this report, the remaining obligation of the tax receivable agreement became due and payable. The TRA liability
will be paid by the Hershey Company. As of December 30, 2017, our remaining outstanding obligation under the TRA
is $64.4 million and has been classified as a current liability. .

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In response to U.S. tax reform, the Staff of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 118 (“SAB No. 118”) to provide guidance to registrants in applying ASC Topic 740 in connection with U.S.
tax reform. SAB No. 118 provides that in the period of enactment, the income tax effects of U.S. tax reform may be
reported as a provisional amount based on a reasonable estimate (to the extent a reasonable estimate can be
determined), which would be subject to adjustment during a “measurement period.” The measurement period begins
in the reporting period of U.S. tax reform’s enactment and ends when a registrant has obtained, prepared and analyzed
the information that was needed in order to complete the accounting requirements under ASC Topic 740. SAB No. 118
also describes supplemental disclosure that should accompany the provisional amounts. We have applied the guidance
of SAB 118 in our consolidated financial statements for the 52 weeks ended December 30, 2017.

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-09, "Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 718): "Scope of Modification
Accounting”, which amends the scope of modification accounting for share-based payment arrangements. The ASU
provides guidance on the types of changes to the terms or conditions of share-based payment awards to which an
entity would be required to apply modification accounting under ASC 718 Stock Compensation. An entity would not
apply modification accounting if the fair value, vesting conditions, and classification of the awards are the same
immediately before and after the modification. The ASU is effective for annual reporting periods, including interim
periods within those annual reporting periods, beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoptionis permitted, including
adoption in any interim period. We do not anticipate any significant award modifications, as such do not anticipate the
adoption of ASU 2017-09 will have a material impact on our consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-04, "Intangibles-Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying the Test
for Goodwill Impairment". ASU 2017-04 simplifies the accounting for goodwill impairments by eliminating Step 2 from
the goodwill impairment test. Under the previous guidance an impairment of goodwill is when the carrying amount of
goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, whereas under the new guidance a goodwill impairment loss would be recognized
if the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, limited to the total amount of goodwill allocated to
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the reporting unit. The Combany adépted this standard in January 2017 and it did not have an impact on its results of
operations, statement of financial position or statement of cash flows.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, "Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain
Cash Receipts and Cash Payments". ASU 2016-15 clarifies how certain cash receipts and cash payments are presented
and classified in the statement of cash flows under Topic 230. This ASU is effective for interim and annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2018. Early application is permitted. The adoption of the standard will impact the
classification of our contingent consideration payments on our consolidated statement of cash flows. -

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, “Financial Instruments-Credit Losses” (Topic 326), which amends
the guidance on the impairment of financial instruments. The standard adds an impairment model, referred to as current
expected credit loss, which is based on expected losses rather than incurred losses. The standard applies to most
debt instruments, trade receivables, lease receivables, reinsurance receivables, financial guarantees and loan

commitments. Under the guidance, companies are requiréd to disclose credit quality indicators disaggregated by year - '

of origination for a five-year period. The new guidance is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2020. We do not anticipate this standard will have a material impact to our
consolidated financial statements.

- InMay 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)", which clarifies
the principles for recognizing revenue. The guidance is applicable to all contracts with customers regardless of industry-
specific or transaction-specific fact patterns. Further, the guidance requires improved disclosures as well as additional
disclosures to help users of financial statements better understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenue that is recognized. In 2015, the FASB issued a deferral of the effective date of the standard to the first quarter
of 2019, with early adoption in fiscal 2017 permitted. In 2016, the FASB issued final amendments clarifying the
implementation guidance for principal versus agent considerations, identifying performance obligations and the
accounting for intellectual property licenses. Upon becoming effective, the Company will apply the amendments in the
updated standard either retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented, or retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of initially applying the guidance recognized at the date of initial application. The Company is currently evaluating
the provisions of ASU No. 2014-09 and assessing the impact on its financial statements. As part of our assessment
work to-date, we have formed an implementation work team, completed training on the new ASU's revenue recognition
model and are continuing our contract review and documentation. The Company has elected to apply the modified
retrospective transition method. '

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, "Leases (Topic 842)", which requires lessees to recognize assets
and liabilities related to lease arrangements longer than twelve months on the balance sheet. This standard also
requires additional disclosures by lessees and contains targeted changes to accounting by lessors. The updated
guidance is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019, and early adoption is permitted.
The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of the adoption of ASU No. 2016-02 on its financial position,
. results of operations, cash flows and financial statement disclosures but does not believe the adoption will have a
material impact. As of December 30, 2017, the Company has $9.0 million of non-cancellable lease commitments. We
anticipate the majority of these leases will be recorded on our consolidated balance sheet upon adoption of this standard.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-11, "Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory", which applies to inventory
thatis measured using first-in, first-out ("FIFO") or average cost. Under the updated guidance, an entity should measure
inventory that is within scope at the lower of cost and net realizable value, which is the estimated selling prices in the
ordinary course of business, less reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal and transportation. The Company
adopted the standard January 1, 2017 and the adoption did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial
statements. - . '

4. ACQUISITIONS
Tyrrells Group Acquisition

On September 2; 2016, the Company' acquired 100% of the voting interests of Tyrrells Group, an international
manufacturer and distributor of better-for-you snacks, for total consideration- of approximately $416.4 million. The
Company paid approximately $381.1 million in cash and issued approximately 2.1 million shares of its common stock
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wrth an acquisition date farr value of approxrmately $35.3 million. The Company f nanced the cash portlon of the
transactlon with proceeds from term Ioans totallng $600 million. , .
This acquisition has been accounted for under the acqursmon method of accounting, whereby the purchase
consideration was allocated to tangible and intangible net assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their estimated Lo
fair values on the date of acquisition. The excess purchase consrderatlon over fair value of net assets acquwed and
liabilities assumed-was recorded as goodwill. - - ‘

Duetothe nature ofthe Tyrrells acqursrtlon the company’s tax basrs inassets carrled over from Tyrrells group. Therefore, \
the company has recorded deferred tax Ilabllrtles for the dlfferences in book and tax bases of rdentlf able |ntang|b|es
and ﬁxed assets. ' .. . : o S !
~d © o . , . ’
o n 2017, the Company completed its accounting of the purchase consideration and estimated fair value: of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition, with adjustments to fair value of certain assets and liabilities
\ ~identified during the measurement period. The adjustments identified during the measurement period were a-result of -
’ changes to the original fair value estimates of certain items acquired and are the result of additional information obtained

since September 2, 2016, that related to facts .and cnrcumstances that exrsted at the acqmsmon date. ‘ e

<

The following table summarizes the final allocation of the purchase consrderatlon for Tyrrells Group to the estimated
- ' fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acqmsrtlon (in thousands)

+

’ .t . A

: t Provisional

S . . ' Valuation - ) ' ;
: . - . as of . Measurement
.o . . " December - Period . Final
.. Purchase consideration: ’ . - R ) ‘ 31,2016 Adjustments  Valuation
i Cash pald as purchase conSIderatlon - . ' ' $ 381,069 § — $ 381,069 -

i

416,388

400,937

Excess purchase' consideration over fair value of net assets acquired (goodwill) -$ 103472 $ . 17,364 - $ . 120,836

. Goodwrll is calculated as the excess of consideration paid over the net assets acqurred and represents synergies,
» organic growth and other benefits that are expected to arise from integrating Tyrrells Group into our operations. The ,
goodwill assocrated with the Tyrrells Group acqwsrtlon is not deductlble for. tax purposes.
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5.INVENTORY. _ .~

’n

1

ventories, net of reserves and provisions, consist of the following (in thousands): .

N December 30
2017

“Work in process. . o o ' T ‘ »1“088

Inventories, net ! : $ . 22523

~ o B

B . i

. ' As of December 30, 2017, we had approximately $0.9 million in reserves for finished goods deemed unsaleable and .

raw materials and packaging deemed obsolete. If future demand or market conditions are less favorable than those
7 projected by our management addltlonal mventory write-downs may be required. : .

6.

N . : .

»,

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - ‘

4 e

Property, plant and eqUIpment are recorded at cost Accumulated depreciation is recognized ratably over the expected
- useful life of the asset. Property, plant and equipment, net consist of the following (|n thousands) "

R PR ’ . K ,December30,.
. . 12017

D
7
-G

)

i~

epreC|at|on expense was approxmately $7.4 m|I||on for the 52 weeks ended December 30, 2017.

]

GOODWILLANDINTANGIBLEASSETS - T '

i

oodW|ILconsists,_ofsthe-follov_vi‘ng,(inxthousands)'

alance as of December 30, 2017 c . s 178,769°

[

In 2017 the Company completed its accountlng of the purchase consideration and estimated fair value of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of the Tyrrells Group acquisition, with adjustments to the fair value of
certain assets and liabilities identified during the measurement period. The adjustments reflected in the table above
were a result of changes to the original fair value estimates of certain items acquired and are the result of additional
. information obtained since December 31 201 6 thatrelated tofacts and circumstances thatexisted at the acquisition
date '

}

)
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Intangible assets consiet of the following (in thousands):

) ‘ v ! Decembe_r 30, 2017 . "
4 n : \. L - ’, - Gro§s . ) . . s
. . -, carrying Accumulated Net carrying e

. ; amount amortization amount

At S
Total ) L " ’ ) " 570,696 $  -(18,927) % 551,769

Amortization of finite-lived intangibles was approximately $7.3 million for the 52 weeks ended December 30,-2017. - ’
‘Amortization of finite-lived intangible assets is included as. part of general and administrative expense in the
accompanying consolidated statements of comprehensive income., The weighted average- rema|n|ng amortlzatlon
period of intangible assets at December 30, 2017 was 12.6 years. B -

A} . *

The estimated future amortlzatlon expense related to finite- I|ved mtang:ble assets is as follows as of December 30,7
2017 (in thousands) , S . , ' ‘ - .

ASC 350, "Intangibles - Goodwill and Other", requires companies to test goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles for

: |mpa|rment annually and more frequently if indicators of impairment exist. Accordingly, the. Company performed its * » -
annual assessment of fair value of trade names and as of July 1, 2017 for its North America operations and.as of '
August 27,2017 forits International. operatlons and. concluded there was.noimpairment related o goodwnll and. |ndef‘n|te-

SDE S NEP Y

‘lived intangibles. \ ) .

-
-



N

. Table of Conten/ts

! Debt consists of the following (in thousands):

Credit Facility - . -
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8. ACCRUED LIABILITIES ~ o | S , '

CoL - . . } - . - .
The following table shows the components of accrued liabilities (in thousands): t <. .
. B . - ) o , \ L " ‘-\

] , o x : ‘December 30, *
: _ . : C 2017

9.DEBT -

[ s co. . ) . .

. . : ) ) e . . : December 30,
: - > : . , 2017

Lessf Current Portion

, -

In connection with the acquisition of Tyrrells Group, the Company entered into a Credit Agreement on September 2,
2016 (the "Credit Facility"), which provided for term loans in the aggrégate principal amount of $600 million (the “Term
Loans").and revolving loans in the aggregate principal amount of $50 million (the "Revolving Loans"), of which $20
million is denominated in pounds sterling. The Company borrowed from the Term Loans in full to finance the acquisition
of Tyrrells Group and pay down all outstandmg indebtedness under the Credit Agreement entered intoon July 17,2014 -

*Revolving Loans.

(the "Prior Credit Facmty") As of December 30, 2017, the Company had $38.8 million of available capamty under the

) .
In connection with the issuance of the Credit Facility, the Company incurred an original issue discount ("OID") of
apprommately $6.6 million and pald lender and legal fees of approximately $15.4 million, which are capltallzed and
presented as a direct reduction to the related debt instrument in the consolidated balance sheets. These costs are
recognized as additional mterest expense -over the term of the related debt instrument usmg the effective interest
method. : , R

”~
.

The Company must repay the Term Loans in mstallments of $1 5 million per qua\rter dueon the last day of each quarter -
beginning with the quarter ending December 31, 2016, with the remaining balance due at maturity in a final installment
of $559.5 million. The Term Loans and Revolving Loans are scheduled to mature oh September 2, 2023 and September
2, 2021, respectively. As a result of the Hershey acquisition discussed in.Note 2, the outstanding indebtedness of the

_ Term Loans and Revolving Loans and associated accrued interest became due and payable. The Hershey Company
_paid a total amount of approximately $607.2 million to settle these outstanding obligation as of January 31, 2018. As [ -

S
[ ° I
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a result of the Hershey acquisition we reclassified the outstanding balances of the Term Loans and Revolving Loans
to a current liability. '

In addition to the installment payments described above, thé Credit Facility includes an annual mandatory prepayment
of the Term Loans from 50% of the Company's excess cash flow as measured on annual basis, with step- downs to
25% and 0% of the Coimpany's excess cash flow if the Company's Total Leverage Ratio (as defined in the Credit
Facility), tested as of the last day of the Company's fiscal year, is less than 4.50 to 1.00 but greater than 3.75 to 1.00,
andless thanorequalto 3.75t0 1.00, respectively. Excess cash flowis generally defined as the Company's Consolidated
Net Income (as defined in the Credit Facility) less debt service costs, unfinanced capital expenditures, unfinanced
acquisition expenditures, and certain restricted payments, as adjusted for changes in the Company's working capital
and less other customary items. The excess cash flow requirement discussed above commenced in the fiscal year
ending December 30, 2017 and the' Company was not obligated to make an excess cash flow payment.

In addition, the Credit Facility requires mandatory prepayment of the Term Loans from the net cash proceeds of (i)
certain debtissuances and (i) certain asset sales outside the ordinary course of business and from proceeds of property
- insurance and condemnation events, in each case of this clause (ii) subject to the Company’s -right in some

circumstances to reinvest such proceeds in the Company’s business. Any voluntary prepayment as part of a repricing
transaction shall be accompanied by a prepayment premium equal to 1.0% of the principal amount of such prepayment,
if such prepayment is made on or prior to the date that is twelve months after September 2, 2016.

Interest

The Term Loans bear interest, at the Company's option, at either the Eurodollar rate plus a margin of 5.50% or the
prime rate plus a margin of 4.50%, with step-downs to 5.00% and 4.00%, respectively, if the Company's First Lien
Leverage Ratio (as defined in the Credit Facility) is less than or equal to 4.50 to 1.00. The Eurodollar rate is subject
“to no floor with respect to the Revolving Loans and an annual 1.00% floor with respect to the Term Loans and the
prime rate is subject to a 1.00% floor with respect to the Revolving Loans and a 2.00% floor with respect to the Term
Loans. As of December 30, 2017, the interest rate on the outstanding Term Loans balance was 6.88% per annum and
-the weighted average rate on the outstanding Revolver Loans balance was 6.94% per annum.

. The Company is also required to pay a commitment fee on the unused commitments under the Revolving Loans at a
rate equal to 0.50% per annum with a step-down to 0.375% per annum, if the Companys First Lien Leverage Ratio is
less than or equal to 3:25 to 1.00.

Guarantees .

The Credit Facility is secured by liens on substantially all the Company's assets, including a pledge of 100% of the
equity interests in the Company's domestic subsidiaries and a pledge of 65% of the voting equity interests and 100%
of the non-voting equity interests in the Company's direct foreign subsidiaries. All obligations under the Credit Facility
are unconditionally guaranteed by substantially all of the Company's direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries, with
certain exceptions. These guarantees are secured by substantially all of the present and future property and assets
of the guarantors, with certaln exclusions.

Covenants

As of the last day of any fiscal quarter of the Company, the terms of the Credit Facility require the Company and its
subsidiaries (on a consolidated basis and subject to certain customary exceptions) to maintain a maximum First Lien -
Leverage Ratio of not more than 8.50 to 1.0, initially, and decreasing to 6.25 to 1.0 over the term of the New Credit
Facility. As of December 30, 2017, the Company was in compliance with our financial covenant.

The Credit Facility contains customary affirmative covenants for transactions of this type and other affirmative covenants
agreed to by the parties, including, among others, the provision of annual and quarterly financial statements and
compliance certificates, maintenance of property, insurance, compliance with laws and environmental matters. The
Credit Facility contains customary negative covenants, including, among others, restrictions on the incurrence of
indebtedness, granting of liens, making investments and acquisitions, paying dividends, repurchases of equity interests
in the Company, entering into affiliate transactions and asset sales. The Credit Facility also provides for a number of

12
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customary events of. default including, among others payment bankruptcy, covenant representatlon and warranty,
change of control and judgment defaults :

’

, Notes Payable

[N}

In April 2016, the Company issued $4.0 million in unsecured notes to the sellers of Boundless Nutrition in connection
with its acquisition. The notes bear interest at a rate per annum of 0. 67% with principal and interest due at varying
* future maturity dates between April 29, 2018 and December 31, 2018. The Company paid .off $1.0 million of the
outstanding notes payable balance on April 29, 2017. The Company recorded an acquisition-date fair value discount
of approximately $0.2 million based on market rates for debt instruments with similar terms (Level 3), which is amortized -
to mterest expense over the term of the notes using the effective-interest method. !

. InApril 2015, the Companyissued $3.9 million in unsecured notes to the sellers of Paquiin connectlon w1th its acquisition.
The notes bear interest at a rate per annum of 1. 5% with principal and interest due at maturity on March 31, 2018. We -
" recorded an acquisition-date fair value discount of approximately $0.2 million based on market rates for debtinstruments
with similar terms (Level 3), which is amortlzed to interest expense over the term of the notes usmg the effectlve-
mterest method.. : _ . o ;

Annual matuntles of debt (excludrng the falr value discount of approxrmately $O 1 m|II|on deferred financing costs, net -
of approximately $13 5 million and 'OID of approxmately $5.5 miltion) as of December 30, 2017, are as follows (in
thousands) '

4

Thereafter -~ . . S ’ : o 562,500

10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Purchase Commitments 4 S : T .

The Company entered into certain supply contracts for ingredients such as popcorn kernels ails, potatoes root
.vegetables and natural ingredients used in Oatmega protein bars. Certain contracts also stipulate that if the Company
fails to purchase the stated quantities within the time period specifi ied, the Company has the option to purchase all
remaining quantities under the contract, or the seller has the right to assess liquidated damages, including payment
of the excess of the contract price over the market price for all remaining contracted quantmes not purchased

1

As of December 30, 2017, the Company's purchase commitments remarnlng under these contracts-were as follows

: ‘ ) . ) : , Ingredient
‘ Commitments

Lease Commitments v o . ' RS

- The Company leases various property and equupment under operatlng Ieases Rent expense from operatlng Ieases
totaled approximately $1.6 million for the 52 weeks ended December 30, 2017: As of December 30, 2017, minimum
rental commitments under non-cancellable operating Ieases were as follows (|n thousands) :

.
~ . . )
B .
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Thereafter

In January 2017, the Company exited its Boundless Nutrition lease and éntered into a sublease agreement for the.

remainder of the lease term. In connection with the lese abandonment, the’ Company incurred a loss on exit activity
.of approximately $0.2 million. Future sublease cash receipts is as follows:

N
! ’

Legal Matters

From time to time, the Company is subject to claims and assessments in the ofdinary course of business. The Company
is not currently a party to any litigation matter that, individually or in the aggregate, is expected to have a material
adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition, results from operations or cash flow.

~
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1. INCOMETAXES Y . ’

us. and foreugn components of income before i mcome taxes were as fo||ows (in thousands)

v . . ) T . Year Ended” -
- ' December 30, 2017

64>
Rdiid

(23.788)

N
. v
v

' . ¢ ' S : " Year Ended -
- ) . oL : December 30, 2017

Total provusuon

U.S.'TAX CuTS AND JOBS ACT CF 2017

The U.S. Tax Cuts and Jobs Act enacted in-December 2017, ("U.S. tax reform”) significantly changes U.S. corporate
income_tax laws by, among other things, reducing the U.S. corporate income tax rate to 21% starting in 2018 and
'creatlng a territorial tax systern with a one-time mandatory tax on prewously deferred foreign earnings of U.S.
subsidiaries.-Under.GAAP- (specifi caIIy,;ASC_,Topch40),Ethe.eﬁects.of,changes,|n=tax rates.and.laws.on.deferred.tax
balances are recognized in the period in y\(hich the new legislation is enacted. ' '

[}
-

In response to U.S. tax reform, the Staff of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting

-Bulletin No. 118 (“SAB No. 118”) to provide guidance to registrants in applying ASC Topic 740 in connection with U.S.

tax reform. FASB Staff Q&A Topic 740 No. 1 states that entities that are not SEC registrants may apply SAB 118 to
financial statements. SAB No. 118 provides that in the period of enactment, the income tax effects of U. S tax reform
may be reported as a provisional amount based on.a reasonable estimate (to the extent a reasonable estimate can .
be determined), which would be subject to adjustment during a “measurement period.” The measurement period begins
in the reporting period of U.S. tax reform’s enactment and ends when a registrant has obtained, prepared and analyzed
the information-that was needed in order.to complete the accounting requirements under ASC Topic 740. SAB No 118
also describes supplemental disclosure that should accompany the prowsmnal amounts. '
U.S. tax reform represents the first 5|gn|fcant change i in U.S. tax law in over 30 years. As permitted by SAB No." 118,
some elements of the tax expense recorded in the fourth quarter of 2017 due to the enactment of U.S. tax reform are
considered “provisional,” based on reasonable estimates. The Company is continuing to collect and analyze detailed
information about deferred income taxes, the earnings and profits of its non-U.S. subsidiaries, the related taxes paid,

S5 I
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the amounts which could be’ repatnated the foreign taxes which may be mcurred on repatriation and the associated

» impact of these items under U.S. tax reform The Company may record adjustments to refine those estimates during

the measurement period, as additional analysns is completed . K . )
Ya ’ ’ : 4

. As-a result we recorded a net benef't of $6.2 million during the fourth quarter of 2017 ThIS amount which is reﬂected
within the provision for income taxes in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, includes the estimated
impact of the benefit from revaluation of net deferred tax Ilabllmes based on the new lower corporate income tax rate.
The impact of the U.S. tax reform may differ from this estimate, possibly materlally, due to, among other things, changes
in |nterpretat|ons and assumptions made, addmonal guudance that may be issued and actions taken as a result of the

U. S tax reform , I .
. f N ! X \ .

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Signifi cant components of

the Company s deferred taxes are as follows:
- . [ . .

December 30, 2017

e

’Total deferred tax assets <, o . 8,797

e

Total deferredtax liabilities - ' . ' o S ) (68210)
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", The'Company’s provtsion for income taxes attributable to continuing operatiohs differs from the expected tax benefit
amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate of 35% to income before taxes for the perlods
presented below primarily as a result of the foIIowrng -

b A}

S ‘ : - ' o , . Year Ended

- i December 30, 2017 {

TRA revaluation ) C o R ‘ 1. 91)% '
’ Income tax provision effectlve rate . o : ' . . . 21.33 % o,
At December 30, 2017, we had U.S. federal and state net operating losses of $0.1 million from the acquisition of the
Tyrrells Group's U.S. subsidiary, which are limited due to IRC Section 382 limitations. These losses are available to
offset(future'U.S. federal and state taxable‘income and to expire at various times from 2021 to 2035.
At December 30, 2017, we had foreign net operating loss carryforwards of $12 5 mlllxon whlch are available to offset
future forelgn taxable income, and do not exprre — ) .
In the U.S., tax returns for 2014 through 2016 remain open and subject to examination. In the U.K., tax years ending
- .in 2016 and later remain open and subject to examination. In Australia, tax years ending in 2014 and later remain '

open and subject to examlnatlon In Germany, tax years endrng in 2014 and later remaln open and subject-to
s examination. . , . ; : \ ‘.

. , : . ,
- ltis the Company’s intention to indefi initely reinvest all foreign earnings outside the United States, therefore no provision '
for.U.S. federal or.state.income.taxes.on.those-earnings-has-been- recorded-The amount-of-unrecognized-deferred """

“tax Ilablllty related to the unremitted earnlngs is not material. ‘

i Our valuation allowances are prlmarrly related to U.K: |nterest expense limitation. carryforwards and vanous forelgn
]UFISldICtlonS net operating loss carryforwards for which we do not expect to realrze a benefit. e , .
. As of December 30, 2017 we have established a long-term Ilablhty for'an uncertain tax posrtron in the amount of
. approxrmately $1.2 million related to pre-acquisition activity by Tyrrells Group. The. Company's policy is to accrue -
. interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as a component of i income tax expense. As of December 30,
oD 2017, the interest- assocrated with the Companys posrtlon is not material. . ) ™ -

L3

12. EQUITY—BASED COMPENSATION . : . : S -

y )
In July 2015, the Ampllfy Snack.Brands, Inc. 2015 Stock Optron and Incentrve Plan (the "2015 Plan") was adopted by
our board of directors, approved by our stockholders and became effective immediately prior to the consummation of : 5
“our IPO in August 2015. The 2015 Plan provides for the grant of various equity-based incentive awards to officers, '
9 employees, non- employee directors and consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries. The types of awards that <
. . AN * . : ,
t ( T : ' :
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may be granted under the 2015 Plan include incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options, restricted stock
‘awards ("RSAs"), restricted stock units ("RSUs™), stock appreciation rights ("SARs") and other equity-based awards.
The Company initially reserved 13,050,000 shares of our common stock for issuance under the 2015 Plan, which is
subject to certain adjustments for changes in the Company's capital structure, as defined in the 2015 Plan.

The eqwty—based compensation expense, net of forfeitures, is recognized using a straight-line basis over the requisite
service period of the awards, which corresponds to the vesting periods of the awards. Equity-based compensation
expense totaled approximately $5.2 million for the 52 weeks ended December 30, 2017. It is the Company's policy to
recognize forfeitures as they occur. For the 52 weeks ended December 30, 2017, the Company recognized $0.3 million
of income tax expense for an excess tax deficiency related to vested equity awards. Equity-based compensation
expense is included as part of general and administrative expense in the accompanying consolidated statement of

comprehensive income. ' )

\

Stock Options

The fair value of stock option awards is estimated on the grant date using the Black Scholes valuation model W|th

the following assumptions: ’

Low High
27.6% - 27.9%

Expected volatility ")
 [Expected dividend yield ' E , S , S
Expected option term © . \ ' ' 6 years
[Risk-free interest rate ) —x ==, - ‘ j s T 8T - 2.21%

.“) The expected volatility assumption was calculated based on a peer group analysis of stock prlce volatlllty with a six-
year look back period ending on the grant date. .

@ We have not paid and do not anticipate paying a cash dividend on our common stock.

® we utilized the sirﬁpliﬁed method to determine the expected term of the stock options since we do not have sufficient
historical exercise data to provide a reasonable basis upon which to estimate expected term.

“ The risk-free interest rate was based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant, WhICh
corresponds to the expected term of the stock options.

The following tablé summarizes the Company's stock option activity for the 52 weeks ended December 30, 2017:
: ) ! -

Weighted
Average
Remaining - Weighted Weighted
Number of Contractual Life Average Average Grant
Optlons (years) Exermse Prlce —— Date Fair Value

[Outstanding as of December 31; 2016/’
Granted

 Exercised $
Forfeited $
[aigandlng as of December, 30, 2017 +,2,466,349. RN G
1242 § 412

Exercisable as of December 30, 2017 ' 202,586

M| September 2017, a stock option award to purchase41,166,173 shares of the Company's common stock was |
granted to an employee in connection with his appointment as an officer of the Company. This award was granted
outside of the 2015 Plan. ¥,
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As of December 30, 2017, the total compensation cost related to nonvested stock options not yet recognized was
approximately $5.4 million with a weighted average remaining period of 2.69 years over which it is expected to be
recognized. As of December 30, 2017, the weighted average remaining contractual life of nonvested stock option
awards is 9.65 years.

The intrinsic value of outstanding stock options as of December 30, 2017 was $10.7 m|II|on based on the closing stock
price on the last trading day of the year.

Restricted Stock Units ("RSUs ")

The following table summarizes the activity of the Company's unvested RSUs for the 52 weeks ended December 30,
2017. -

Weighted
Number of Average Grant
RSUs - Date Fair Value
fUnvested'as of December 31720163 ENE T T . 1:640,301°°$ " co ol e 15.31]
Issued ' 922,580 $ 775
|.:Forfeited =5 T S i e, ke 22 (1:326,171) $ AT 1601
Vested , (81,343) $ 13.47
{Unvested as'of December 302017 +.i .= -« s = ¢ in e U7 411553677 8.7 Ly B 8144

" Includes shares withheld to satisfy tax obligations upon vesting.

Based on our closing stock prir:e at December 30, 2017, the aggregate intrinsic value of the unvested RSUs was
approximately $13.9 million. Total unrecognized expense related to unvested RSUs was approximately $8.1 million

as of December 30, 2017. We anticipate this expense will be recognized over a weighted average remaining period’

" of approximately 2.49 years. Restricted stock units fair value is determlned by the market value of our common stock
on the date of the grant.

Restricted Stock Awards ("RSAs")

In connection with the Corporate Reorganization in August 2015, all of the outstanding equity awards (which were
comprised of Class C-1 and C-2 units of Topco) that were granted under the TA Topco 1, LLC 2014 Equity Incentive
Plan, were converted into shares of the common stock and restricted stock of the Company. The portion of outstandlng
Class C units that had vested as of the consummation of the Corporate Reorganization were converted into shares of
the Company's common stock and the remaining portion of unvested outstanding Class C units were converted into
shares of the Company’s restricted stock, which were granted under the 2015 Plan.

2017.

Weighred
Number of Average Grant

RSAs Date Fair Value

Unvested as December 31 2016 ' © 2,948,995 $ - 1.43
I"Issued R , R R AR o R R s ,,v izt ) .:-.'.‘ fl“t =
Forfelted (123,600) $ 1.74
i = b (1:554,106)°%.."% 5:1:34]
Unvested as December 30, 2017 1,271,289 $ 1.51

Based on our closing stock price at December 30, 2017, the aggregate intrinsic value of the unvested RSAs was

approximately $15.3 million. Total unrecognized expense related to unvested RSAs was approximately $1.6 million as

of December 30,"2017. We anticipate this expense will be recognized over a weighted average remaining period of
9 . .
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0.97 years. Included in our unamortized expense are RSAs issued to a non-employee which are remeasured at fair '
value at each reporting date until the awards vest. .

" 13. OTHER INCOME, NET

For 52 weeks ended December 30, 2017 other income, net consisted of the following:

[Galn on revaluation of TRA‘obllgatlon M

Gain on forelgn currency transactlon
|Sublease income 2.+
Loss on exit activity @
=‘6’iﬁ€?‘ex°6'é”ﬁse:

Total other income, net ) $ (25, 587)

™ During the 52 weeks ended December 30, 2017 the enacted U.S. federal income tax rate was reduced from 35%
to 21%, as aresult the Company recorded a gain of $24.6 million as the future amounts owed under the TRA obllgatlon
were reduced : :

@ During the 52 weeks ended December 30, 2017, the Company-enteréd into a sublease for one of its properties for
" the remaining lease term. At the time of the sublease the Company recognized a loss on exit activity of $0.2 million.
During the 52 weeks ended December 30, 2017, the Company recognized $0.2 million of sublease income.

)
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